
Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 16, 2011  1 
 

POLSON CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 
MONDAY, MAY 16, 2011, 7:00 P.M. 
 
ATTENDANCE:  City Commissioners:  Don Smith, John Campbell, Judy Preston, Mike 
Lies, Elsa Duford, Fred Funke, and Mayor Pat DeVries presiding.  City Attorney James 
Raymond and City Manager Todd Crossett present.  Others present:  Jeremy Morgret, 
Parks Superintendent Karen Sargeant, Water and Sewer Superintendent Tony Porrazzo, 
Assistant Police Chief John Stevens, Ric Smith, City Treasurer Bonnie Manicke, Dave 
Sheesley, Dennis Duty, Rory Horning, Streets Superintendent Terry Gembala, Lita Fonda, 
Street Worker Bill Smith, Police Chief Doug Chase, Rick LaPiana, Barb LaPiana, Bonnie 
Hone, Ron Hone, Irene DeBorde, Don DeBorde, Richard Campbell, City Willis, Mike 
Southerland, Jill Southerland, Rick Dunshee, Cindy Dunshee, Sharon S. Finney, and 
Murat Kalinyaprak.   
 
Mayor Pat DeVries called the meeting to order and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited.   
 
APPROVAL OF PROPOSED AGENDA:    Commissioner Preston moved to approve the 
agenda as presented, seconded by Commissioner Lies.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA: 

A.  MAY 1-15 CLAIMS 
Commissioner Smith moved to approve the consent agenda item A, seconded by 
Commissioner Preston.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
CITY COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES MAY 2, 2011:  Commissioner Lies moved to 
approve the May 2, 2011 Commission meeting minutes with typographical corrections, 
seconded by Commissioner Preston.  Rory Horning commented that he wished they’d stop 
editorializing the minutes, which reflected poorly on whoever wrote the minutes. The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
CITY MANAGER COMMENTS:  City Manager Crossett advised that the Commissioners and 
the staff had participated in a mission statement work shop earlier in the day.  He was pleased 
with the results of the work shop. The Mission created reads: “Inspiring beauty and community”.   
 
The Highway 93 realignment had information on the internet, which was linked on the City’s 
front page at www.cityofpolson.com.  They had been going through an involved process, and 
feedback had been given from the Tribe, County, City and public comments.  They were looking 
at three options.  The first was to stay on the current alignment, which would require widening 
the highway.  The Second and third were routes along Caffrey Road and Kerr Dam Road.  There 
were pros and cons with each route.  The consultant recommended that, regardless of which 
route was chosen, 7th Avenue should be upgraded, though not widened, creating easier more 
aesthetic access to the downtown area.  The next Traffic Oversight Committee meeting would be 
Thursday, May 19th at 1:00 p.m. at the Courthouse.  He suggested anyone interested take a look 
at the information available on the website.   
 

http://www.cityofpolson.com/�


Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 16, 2011  2 
 

There would be a Main Street stakeholders meeting Wednesday, May 18th at 6:00 p.m. to go over 
anything needed repaired and the upcoming schedule for the chip sealing, restriping and 
landscaping of the bulb outs.  There would be a question and answer period as well. 
 
The Mariners and the Babe Ruth baseball leagues had met their deadline and had both signed off 
on an equitable program for joint use of the field and were moving forward.  
 
City Staff was working closely with Stelling Engineering on many of the finalized details for 
Skyline Phase 1, they were on track to begin in July. Phase One includes the portion of the 
project encompassing First Street East.  Phase Two will be carried out in 2012 to complete the 
project. They were hoping to receive local bids on the project.  An all day Skyline meeting 
would be held Monday, May 23rd at the Courthouse.   
 
CITY MANAGER CONTRACT:  City Attorney Raymond advised that Commissioners Smith, 
Funke and Preston had worked with City Manager Crossett on the contract renewal negotiations.  
Mayor DeVries noted that his wage would remain the same, and the only change in the contract 
was an additional 5 days of vacation time.  Commissioner Funke moved to approve the City 
Manager’s contract renewal, seconded by Commissioner Smith.  Commissioner Duford 
commented that regular employees had to work 21 years to receive 24 days of vacation time per 
year, and expressed that she was opposed to the additional vacation time.  Commissioner 
Campbell empathized with asking for more vacation time to spend time with his young family.  
He felt good about giving more time and not increasing the wage.  Mayor DeVries noted that it 
was customary to hire executives and place them on the vacation scale commiserate with their 
experience rather than start time served at the organization.  She added that City Manager 
Crossett was available via his cell phone or email most of the time he was on vacation.  Paul 
London commented that City Manager Crossett put in lots of time attending many early morning 
and evening meetings.  He felt the City Manager was very approachable and easy to talk to, and 
could see where Polson was going.  He added that the City Manager was good for Polson.  Lou 
Marchello commented that he could see the work that Mr. Crossett had accomplished in Polson 
and what he was planning down the road.  He felt that Mr. Crossett was the best man for the job.  
Rory Horning commented that Mr. Crossett should keep writing so he could take all those guys 
to lunch because he always gets the good deal.  He commented that he appreciated him telling 
them how an executive runs a company, but most executives were in fortune 500 companies.  He 
commented that when he was on vacation he was always on the clock and always there to help 
run things.  He thought that Commissioner Duford’s point was the parity between the City 
Manager and the other employees.  He felt that benefits should be same and his leadership 
should be an example to the workers.  He expressed concern for morale as a result.  He praised 
Commissioner Duford for understanding and commented that the City’s CEO’s would 
understand that himself.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that at a previous meeting the City 
Manager had brought a proposal to buy the Meridian building to the Commission, and the 
Commissioners would not even approve of a price $200,000 less.  He felt that one transaction 
could have cost the tax payers $200-300,000 and he did not know how they saw him in a 
position to get what he wanted.  Ric Smith pointed out all of the support for City Manager 
Crossett, including employees and many members of the public.  He noted that many big 
projects had been completed or were in the process of being planned with Mr. Crossett as the 
captain.  He commented that he had seen the employee morale improve with Mr. Crossett’s 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 16, 2011  3 
 

leadership.  He encouraged the Commissioners to approve of the contract renewal.  Rick 
Dunshee commented that disputing 5 days of vacation time was petty if they were happy with the 
job he was doing.  Jeremy Morgret commended the City Manager selection committee and the 
City Commission as a whole for their hiring.  He commented that going into the second year Mr. 
Crossett had done been doing a good job.  He commented that the community rallied behind Mr. 
Crossett, and he had the support of his department heads.  He felt that Polson’s best days lay 
ahead, and Mr. Crossett would be the one to take them there with maintaining the day to day and 
planning for the future.  He encouraged the Commissioners to renew the contract.  The motion 
carried with 6-1, Commissioner Duford opposed.   
 
CHERRY FESTIVAL – APPROVE OPEN CONTAINER WAIVER:  Ken Avison advised 
that the Cherry Festival would be July 16th and 17th.  There would be a street dance on Saturday 
from 6:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m., and that would be the only time they were asking for an open 
container.  Commissioner Lies moved to approve the waiver of open container for the 
Cherry Festival street dance, seconded by Commissioner Funke.  Rick LaPiana inquired if 
the police had approved of the waiver.  Police Chief Chase advised that they were in favor of the 
waiver.  The motion carried unanimously.   
 
MAIN STREET FUND RAISER “LIGHT UP THE TOWN CELEBRATE CITY 
CENTER” – WAIVER OF OPEN CONTAINER – JULY 8, 2011:  City Manager Crossett 
advised that the fundraising committee had been working on getting donations for Main Street’s 
extras including bricks, landscaping, benches, and garbage receptacles.  A band called the Mud 
Flaps would be playing at the celebration. He noted that there were many options for people to 
contribute to Main Street.  He encouraged everyone to attend the festivities.  Commissioner 
Smith noted that there would be a bench dedicated to Barry Webb on one of the bulb outs.  City 
Treasurer Manicke advised that the open container would only be after 6:00 p.m.  They were 
hoping to bring the farmer’s market into the festivities.  She noted that Main Street’s 
improvements had been a collaborative effort and had been a long run for all the committees 
involved.  She added that one of the classes at Polson High School may purchase an entire bulb 
out for their class.  Commissioner Funke moved to approve the waiver of open container 
July 8, 2011 for the Main Street fundraiser, seconded by Commissioner Lies.  Rory Horning 
commented that he commended the City Manager for supporting the event since during the 
budget crisis he had thought that they may have to curtail all these public functions and it was 
nice to see that they still had them.  Ric Smith commented that he did not recall the City 
Manager that they’d have to curtail public functions.  Rory Horning commented that it was in the 
minutes. Mayor DeVries asked that all comments be addressed to the Chair.  The motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
POP’S GRILL – PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY ENCROACHMENT REVOCABLE 
PERMIT:  Lou Marchello advised that the Mcelvogues were unable to attend the meeting, but 
he would be representing them.  They were asking to renew the permit Alotto Gelato had held 
the previous year, with the same setup.  He noted that they did increase their insurance to 
accommodate the City’s requirements.  Commissioner Smith moved to approve the public 
right-of-way encroachment permit for Pop’s Grill, seconded by Commissioner Campbell.  
The motion carried unanimously.   
 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 16, 2011  4 
 

SCHEDULE HEALTH INSURANCE WORKSHOP:  City Manager Crossett advised that 
this meeting would be part of their budget discussion.  They were collecting info to help make 
the best decision. He noted that the Commission would have to vote on health insurance renewal 
at their June 6th meeting. Commissioner Funke moved to schedule the health insurance 
workshop for 4:00 p.m. on June 1st at City Hall, Commissioner Lies seconded the motion.  
The motion carried unanimously.   
 
APPROVE & AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN SKYLINE UTILITY 
INFRASTRUCTURE MOU:  City Manager Crossett advised that this was a good opportunity 
to do the infrastructure work because the Skyline project would be paying for a portion of the 
upgrade, saving the City money.  He noted that the cost to the City would be approximately 
$500,000, but would be much higher if they did the utility improvements on their own.  He 
advised that Water & Sewer Superintendent Porrazzo and City Engineer Shari Johnson had been 
working closely with Stelling Engineering on the project.  Commissioner Lies moved to 
approve and authorize the City Manager to sign the Skyline utility infrastructure MOU, 
seconded by Commissioner Preston.  Rory Horning asked what the City was getting.  City 
Manager Crossett advised that they would be extending the stormwater beyond the Skyline 
project to avoid the water surcharging the old pipes.  They would be taking the system an 
additional 3 blocks to the larger main along with some other odds and ends.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
AUTHORIZE CITY MANAGER TO CONTRACT LANDSCAPING SERVICES FOR 
STREETSCAPE PROJECT:  City Manager Crossed advised that they were closing in on the 
removal of the gravel and installation of landscaping on Main Street’s bulb outs.  He reviewed 
how the bulb outs had functioned over the past year and noted that the native plants would be 
almost self sustaining after being in place a couple years.  He noted that the parks would be 
maintaining the landscaping along with the hanging baskets.  He felt that it was important that 
they have a contract for the landscape, which would warranty the plants for the first year.  He 
noted that Josyln Shackleford of Alpine Landscaping had done a great deal of volunteer work on 
the project already – including a project design and fund raising, she would be selling some 
materials at cost, and she was familiar with the project.  The cost of the project would be about 
$17,520. The City’s cost would be about $10,800 and the rest would be from donations.  
Commissioner Preston moved to authorize the City Manager to contract landscaping 
services for the Streetscape project, seconded by Commissioner Preston.  Commissioner 
Lies inquired if they had only received one bid.  City Manager Crossett advised that the cost of 
the project was less than the requirement for going out to bid.  He recommended the proposed 
landscaping services because she had volunteered, designed the project and would be selling 
some material at cost. Commissioner Duford inquired if the weed mat would need replaced.  City 
Manager Crossett advised that it would need replaced, but some of it may be under warranty and 
some had been damaged by people driving vehicles over the bulb outs.  They drainage from the 
matting had not been ideal, and they were planning to go with a lighter weed mat.  Once the root 
system was in place from the landscaping the matting would be less of an issue.  Commissioner 
Duford inquired about how the landscaping would be maintained.  City Manager Crossett 
advised that the parks department would be maintaining the landscaping along with the hanging 
baskets.  The parks department would also be emptying the trash receptacles on Main Street.  He 
estimated the cost to the City would be $200-300/year.  He felt it was in the City’s best interest 



Polson City Commission Meeting Minutes May 16, 2011  5 
 

to maintain the plants, rather than volunteers to maintain accountability for their care.  Rory 
Horning commented that a lot of greenhouse and landscaping businesses in the area might have 
volunteered for a project if they knew that would get them a part of the contract.  He commented 
that they should talk to those people about buying locally if they were going to give a contract 
because somebody volunteered. The motion carried with 6 in favor, Commissioner Campbell 
abstained.   
 
MARCH 2011 CASH REPORT:  City Treasurer Manicke advised that the cash report was 
preliminary and for information purposes only.  The report would be complete and ready for 
approval at the June Commission meeting.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS OF SIGNIFICANT INTEREST TO THE PUBLIC 
NOT ON THE AGENDA:   Lita Fonda commented that there was a handicapped spot on Main 
Street between 2nd and 5th Avenues with difficult sidewalk access.  City Manager Crossett 
thanked her for bringing the issue to his attention and advised that these issues would be 
addressed at the May 18th Main Street meeting.  Commissioner Smith encouraged the public to 
attend the meeting stressing that was the time and place to deal with their issues.   
 
Murat Kalinyaprak asked if the Commission intended to take any action regarding the decision in 
January regarding Mission Bay Preserve Phase III.  Mayor DeVries advised that they did not.  
Murat Kalinyaprak comment that there were some citizens who believed that the Commission 
made a decision that should be null and void because of either mistakenly incomplete or 
purposely false information.  He commented that he believed they broke City and State Codes.  
He commented that they had invited the Commission to take corrective action, but the citizens 
would have to take legal action to make the Commission abide the Codes.  Mayor DeVries 
reiterated that the Commission would not be taking further action on the matter under the advice 
of their legal counsel.  Murat Kalinyaprak commented that acting based on the City Attorney’s 
opinion may not be the best thing that they were doing.   
 
Rory Horning commented that he would further her brush off comment, when they speak to 
some gentlemen they get brushed off.  He commented that when members of the public comment 
on the minutes he never sees the changes in the following minutes as notated, they just let them 
go.  He commented that he would appreciate if they follow the rule that if they make a change it 
gets put in there, and if somebody else makes a change they get put in there and follow state law.  
Mayor DeVries noted that Montana Legislation has made changes to the laws pertaining to 
minutes.  Rory Horning commented that less editorializing would be a good change.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 
 

____________________________________ 
Mayor Pat DeVries     

___________________________________ 
Attest:  Kala Parker, City Clerk 
 


